
Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - June 21, 2010

Page 1

 
The regular meeting of the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey
was held on June 21, 2010 at 7:00 p.m. in the meeting room of the Township Hall, 2600 Bayshore Road, Villas, New
Jersey.

The Clerk announced that the meeting was being held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act and that
adequate notice of the meeting had been provided according to law.

The following members of Council were present for roll call taken by the Clerk:

Councilmember Thomas Conrad
Councilmember Wayne Mazurek
Councilmember Glenn Douglass

Deputy Mayor Kevin Lare
Mayor Michael Beck

Also present: Anthony Monzo, Solicitor, Kathleen McPherson, Manager and Asst. Clerk Horwath

Certificate of Recognition
Mayor Beck presented Sheri Hemingway with a certificate of Recognition for her hard work in getting together
Township �s first Block Party.

WORK SESSION

Review of Consent and Regular Agenda Items
No Council Comments.

Public Questions on Consent Agenda and/or Regular Agenda Items
Joe Winters of Florida Avenue questioned the cost to the Township for the Concession Agreement with Party
Magic?
Manager McPherson said there was no cost to the Township the people purchased a wrist band for $12.00.
Deputy Mayor Lare said in the past years rides weren �t an issue, there were very few vendors that would come for
free.  The vendor would bring the rides and charge on a fee basis.
Mr. Winters asked if there would be enough rides for the kids.
Manager McPherson said there would be 23 rides.

Consent Agenda

Approval of Minutes June 7, 2010
Res. #2010-151, Payment of Vouchers, $2,330,715.44
Res. #2010-152, A Resolution Requesting Release of Performance Guarantee for Harbortown Resort Marina,

Phase 4B; Block 823, Lot 3.01, Escrow #P07-09-09
Res. #2010-153 Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Administrative Order and Notice of



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - June 21, 2010

Page 2

 Civil Administrative Penalty Assessment
Res. #2010-154, A Resolution Requesting Release of Maintenance Guarantee for Harbourtown Resort Marina,

Canyon Club, Phase 4C; Block 823, Lot 3.01; Escrow P06-06-07
Res. #2010-155, Resolution of Support from Local Governing Body Authorizing the Sustainable Jersey

 Grant funded by Wal-Mart
Res. #2010-156, Approval of Change Order #2 for the Public Safety Building (Repair of portion of roof & flashing

over vestibule area & interior repairs necessary after mold remediation work)
Res. #2010-157, Certification of Lot Clearing Charges to the Tax Collector (3 properties)
Res. #2010-158, Issuance of Ice Cream Peddling Licenses for the Year 2010 to Fudgy Wudgy (2 trucks & 4 sales

persons)
Res. #2010-159, Insertion of Special Item of Revenue Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87, Chapter 159 (Arts Grant

$2000)
Res. #2010-160, Insertion of Special Item of Revenue Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87, Chapter 159 (Clean

Communities  Grant $61,994.28)
Res. #2010-161, Insertion of Special Item of Revenue Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87, Chapter 159 (Click It or Ticket 

$4,000)
Res. #2010-162, Insertion of Special Item of Revenue Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87, Chapter 159 (PetSmart

$15,000)
Res. #2010-163, Insertion of Special Item of Revenue Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87, Chapter 159 (Body Armor,

$1,598.81)
Res. #2010-164, Establishing A Municipal Alliance Committee (Committee for Drug Abuse & 
Res. #2010-165, Approval of Change Order #1, Fishing Creek School (Addition of porch roof for $1500)
Res. #2010-166, Resolution Awarding Concession Stand Lease for the Lower Township Swimming Pool (Melo

Concessions $1500)
Res. #2010-167, A Resolution of the Township of Lower Approving Concession Agreement With Party Magic

 to Provide Entertainment and Amusements  
Res. #2010-168, Renewal of Liquor Licenses for  2010-2011(Annual Renewal) 
Res. #2010-169, Approval for Fireworks by Grucci to Load a Fireworks Barge In Lower Township
Res. #2010-170, Issuance of an Ice Cream Salesman License for 2010
Res. #2010-171, A Resolution Requesting Release of Performance Guarantee for Harbourtown Resort

Marina, Inc./Canyon Club - Phase 5: Block 823, Lot 3.01 Escrow #P06-06-08

Councilmember Mazurek  motioned to adopt the consent agenda,  seconded by Councilmember Conrad.  The
 consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember
 Mazurek,  �yes �, Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor  Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck ,  �yes �.

Regular Agenda
Res. #2010-140, Resolution of the Township Council of the Township of Lower endorsing and
 Supporting governor Chris Christie �s Proposal to Place a 2.5% CAP on Annual Property Tax Increases and Further
Endorsing the Governor �s Plan to Initiate Financial Reforms on the State and Local Levels of Government 
Councilmember Conrad said the first draft he wasn �t supporting, he said there were things needed in the toolbox and
needed something to work at a municipal level.
Councilmember Mazurek said he thought long and hard and felt he had a responsibility to the people of Ward II.  He
said he wouldn �t be here when it happen but felt he should say something.  He felt the resolution was wrong for



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - June 21, 2010

Page 3

Lower Township with all the amendments.   He said cuts would have to be made to DPW, Public Safety, Recreation
etc.  and it would have a negative impact on the Township.  
Councilmember Mazurek said personnel was near a bear bones level now, down to 38-40 partolmen on the street. 
He stated even with a 4% CAP they probably would still have to layoff a couple officers next year.  He said with a
2.5% CAP he couldn �t imagine how many people would have to be laid off and there would be a reduction in
services.  He spoke to people in Ward II and they were happy with the level of services they received and happy with
their taxes.  He said if you check the areas around here, the taxes were not that high.  He stated if they wanted to
keep it at 2.5% they didn �t need the Governor to say they could do it, they could do it on their own.  He said if it was
for the toolbox then they had to wait for it to do what they needed to do.  He said even with some of the reforms they
would be balancing the budget on the backs of the employees and reduce services to residents.  
Councilmember Mazurek they might want to look at a phased in CAP.  If the resolution passed the Governor would
just add Lower Township to the list.  He said if the Governor cared about the State he would just bag the CAP idea
and enact his toolbox quickly.  He said he couldn �t support it.
Councilmember Douglass said the Governor hadn �t supplied all the tools for the tool box.    He needs to get things in
place and agreed with phasing in the CAP.  He said it would be a critical year next year and didn �t want to see
services lost or employees.
Deputy Mayor Lare wanted to clarify something and said the budget this year funded 42 officers.  He said whether
they voted for it or not, it was coming and the state legislators supported it.
Mayor Beck said he was in favor of the 2.5% with the caveat they receive the tool kit.  He said if they had no took kit
there was no way he could support it.  He felt the Governor hadn �t gone far enough with interest arbitration.  He said
the median police salaries last year were $95,000.00 and they couldn �t pay that.  He said did they want 40 officers at
$100,000.00 or 50 officers at $80,000.00.  He said it was a matter of economics.  He said until they could get the
salaries under control they would have to deal with less numbers.   He said the number one problem in municipal
government was interest arbitration. 
Mayor Beck said he supported the 2.5% CAP with the other tools.  He stated something had to be done.
Councilmember Mazurek wanted to make it clear why he opposed the resolution.  He said he was in agreement with
everything Mayor Beck had said.  He said for the Governor to impose that CAP next year, the things in the tool box
wouldn �t give Council the ammunition to make the cuts they needed to meet the CAP.  He said if he implements the
2.5% CAP the Township would be a million short next year.  He said the auditor had said many times the only way to
get the million was to cut employees and you couldn �t maintain the same services. He said he didn �t think it was a
good idea.
Mayor Beck said the alternative was business as usual.  He said the things in the resolution were the things he felt
they could support.  He said the tool kit had to be more than a vague promise.  He wanted something tangible that
could reduce their costs.

Public Comment
Joe Winters asked if they didn �t approve the resolution and it was passed Council was still stuck with a 2.5% CAP. 
He felt they should pass the resolution and they needed to start to get things under control in the Township.  
Jack Sparks of North Cape May said he watched the news on channel 23 and it was a done deal.  He said the most
to be changed was 2.5% to maybe 2.7%.  He said the program was about 20 minutes and there was no mention of
any other tool but that.  He said it appeared there wasn �t anything else to be done about it.  He said the Governor
had the votes to get it done.  He said Lower Township was small potatoes it was what North Jersey and Central
Jersey wanted.    
Janet Pitts Lower Township Taxpayers Association said she approved of it.   She said to look at  it f rom the people �s
perspective, there were things in the past that never came to fruition for example school consolidation and other



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - June 21, 2010

Page 4

things.  She looked at this as a way for municipalities to look into shared services as in countywide dispatch,
Assessor, etc..
Councilmember Mazurek said what Ms. Pitts said made sense.  He said there were definite reforms to be made
such as arbitration, consolidate schools you could save on administration all around.  He said the Governor should
be making the changes instead he was taking the easy route and imposing the CAP and the Townships had to deal
with it.  He said a 2.5% CAP meant that the Township would probably loose 15 employees next year and the
Governor was sitting in his mansion and he didn �t care.
Janet Pitts said Home Rule was a problem.
Councilmember Conrad said he agreed with Councilmember Mazurek but it was going to be imposed and that was
what the resolution was saying they wanted those items in the tool box such as shared services.
Deputy Mayor Lare said under the Governor �s proposal you could exceed the 2.5% CAP with voter approval.
Ed Butler VP of Lower Township Taxpayers Association said Council needed to open the tool kit and use it.  
Councilmember Mazurek said he didn �t disagree with what Mr. Butler said .  He said Council held the tax rate to zero
and had done a good job at keeping things to a base level.  He said putting a 2.5% CAP on the Township would put
a burden on them and punish them for keeping things at base levels.  He stated the Auditor said several time the
only way was to cut people.  
Mr. Butler said the Auditor gave them the tool.  He said the crisis was here and it would be here next year.  
Bill Greenfield of Villas, said he didn �t think layoffs were necessary, get concessions from the employees.  
Councilmember Conrad said they had to look to increase fees, fines and the green movement they need solar and
wind.  He said they needed to stop talking and do it.
Councilmember Douglass said he had made that statement about employees but some things were quick fixes.  He
said future contract had been discussed.  He said a statement had been made about all the homes for sales and
many were sales , but also foreclosures due to loss of employment.
Mr. Butler said they had to make decisions for the whole community.
Councilmember Lare motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember Conrad.  The
 consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember
 Mazurek,  �no �, Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor  Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck ,  �yes �.

Res. #2010-172, Payment of Vouchers, $250.00
Councilmember Conrad motioned to adopt the resolution,  seconded by Councilmember Lare.  The
 consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember
 Mazurek,  �yes �, Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor  Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck ,  �yes �.

Administrative Reports
Personnel Action Report
April Report - MUA
May Reports - Animal Control, Construction, Dog Licensing, Fire Bureau, Municipal Clerk, Municipal
Court, Public Works, Tax Collector, Treasurer, Vital Statistics

           Council Comments
Councilmember Conrad said Pastor Howard was retiring and he had been with Tabernacle Church for years.  He 
congratulated the class of 2010 on their graduation.
                                                                  



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - June 21, 2010

Page 5

                                                        Res. #2010-153, Authorization of Settlement
Deputy Mayor Lare said he appreciated and respected his opinion and the public won when they had good debates.
He said he had prepared a statement and wanted to read regarding Res. #2010-153 he said the resolution
authorized the settlement with the DEP in the amount of $20,000.00 when the original amount was $72,000.00 one
might declare the settlement a small victory.   He said the fine was a result of the Township �s previous engineering
firm Remington and Vernick �s negligence in obtaining the proper permits to legally reconstruct the outfall pipes along
the Delaware Bay.  He said not only was the Township fined, now they were being sued by the original contractor for
one million dollars.  He said the lack of permits delayed the project for a year while the Township �s new engineering
firm Hatch Mott MacDonald obtained the proper approvals.  
Deputy Mayor Lare said it was the tip of the iceberg when it came to Remington & Vernick �s performance.  He said R
& V worked on the COAH Plan for almost two years which was stalled over the request for more funds.  Tthe
Township had paid them over $20,000.00, the Conifer Project in North Cape May the Township had exposure to a
builders remedy lawsuit and Conifer couldn �t move forward with their project until the COAH Plan was complete.  He
said in 2009 the Township relieved Remington & Vernick of their duties and within a week the new planning firm had
the plan complete and submitted to the State which allowed Conifer to apply for their funding and provide the
Township legal protection from a builders remedy lawsuit.  He state the cost to the taxpayers for the new plan was
$13,000.00.
The Rural Sustainability Plan,  the State instructed the Township to start over because the plan Remington and
Vernick submitted on the Township �s behalf was plagiarized and lacked sufficient and pertinent information for
State �s acceptance.  He said the cost to the taxpayers that was paid to Remington and Vernick was $22,000.00 plus
the additional cost to start the project over.  The ADA project at Township Hall,  there were four change orders which
escalated the cost higher or the fire suppression system project in the construction office which went to bid with no
response because the plans depicted the building as a police station as a result Remington & Vernick wanted
additional funds to draw the correct plans. He said and who would forget the Freeman Douglass Park also known as
Bennett �s Crossing.  He said the project started out with a budget north of a million dollars and when R & V were
finished it exceeded three million.  He said there was enough blame to go around for the excesses inc luding DEP
but nobody could deny the ineptitude of Remington & Vernick �s performance.  He mentioned the sod being torn up
three times, the drainage hadn �t worked since its inception and had just been repaired hopefully for the final time by
DPW staff.  He said the baseball field that was designed to have a grass infield but there was no irrigation for the
grass, the grass on the football still struggled as a result of the disproportionate mixture of soil and fertilizer
applications under the supervision of Remington and Vernick and the list went on.  He said these things were
brought up due to Res. #153 and for the first time in his tenure there was an engineering report from the MUA in their
packet.   He said much to his outrage he found it beyond reprehensible that a firm that had cost the residents of
Lower Township tens of  thousands of dollars stand to profit from future sewer and water expansion projects while
Council had done the right thing by ending the tenure of Remington & Vernick as Township Engineers.  Based solely
on their lack of performance while 3 block south the MUA had a cozy relationship with Remington and Vernick so
much that they stand to be the engineer of record for work in excess of ten million dollars.  He had one piece of
advice for the MUA before any future consideration was given for reduction of workforce of in house employees if
there were any, look first at your engineering firm they had already cost the residents of the Township enough.

Public Comments

Joseph Winters of Florida Avenue said Deputy Mayor Lare cited Res. #2010-153 , yet he had voted for a lot of those
things.
Deputy Mayor Lare said all he had voted on was hold over work.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - June 21, 2010

Page 6

Mr. Winters said there was a lot of things that went on with the MUA and he agreed, but they were coming around 
and there had been a lot more communication with them.

Fishing Creek School 
Janet Pitts wanted to say the roof was going up quickly on the Fishing Creek School and saw a lot of opportunity to
hold a lot of events there.

WaWa in Villas
Ed Mckenstry, 15 Alabama Avenue said his property line was on the parking lot of WaWa.  He said there were
problems with loud music, speeding, cars with boom boxes etc.  He had contacted the main office of WaWa and said
they were no help and asked Council what he could do.
Mayor Beck said the Township would reach out to WaWa and make the Police aware of it.  

Kerri Numbers 
Mayor Beck said he was awaiting a phone call regarding a young lady Kerri Numbers who was returning home from
serving a year in Afghanistan.  She was returning home with an escort and Council was going to give her a
certificate of appreciation.  He said he hoped she enjoyed here time home with her family and everyone was very
proud of her as well as others who serve our country. 

Res. #2010-173,     A Resolution Providing for a Meeting Not Open to the Pubic in Accordance with the Provisions of
 the New Jersey Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A. 10:4-12 
Councilmember Conrad motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember Mazurek. The resolution
was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember Mazurek,  �yes �,
Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck   �yes �.

Council returned to open session and there being no further comment, Councilmember Conrad motioned to adjourn
the meeting, seconded by Councilmember Douglass the meeting unanimously adjourned by verbal  �ayes � at 9:30
p.m.

__________________________ __________________________
           Mayor Township Clerk

Approved: July 7, 2010


